Councillors: Amin, Beacham, Christophides, Mallett, Meehan, Peacock (Vice-Chair), Reid,

Reith, Schmitz and Solomon

Also Present: Councillors Bevan, Strickland and Watson

MINUTE

NO.

SUBJECT/DECISION

PC241.	APOLOGIES
	Apologies for absence were received from Cllr Demirci, Cllr Basu and Cllr McNamara, for whom Cllr Meehan, Cllr Reith and Cllr Amin were substituting.
PC242.	URGENT BUSINESS
	There were no items of urgent business.
PC243.	DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	Cllr Christophides declared an interest in agenda item 10, as the site was within her Ward and Cllr Reid declared an interest in agenda item 12, as this site was within his Ward. Neither of these interests was a disclosable pecuniary or prejudicial interest.
PC244.	DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS
	There were no deputations or petitions.
PC245.	MINUTES
	RESOLVED
	That the minutes of the meeting held on 12 November 2012 be approved and signed by the Chair.
PC246.	TREE PRESERVATION ORDERS
	The Committee considered a report, previously circulated, seeking to confirm the Tree Preservation Order placed on the specified Weeping Willow located at 65 Wood Vale, N10.
	Two objectors addressed the Committee, and stated that the method on which the TPO was based had been applied incorrectly; the score for the tree fell well below the threshold for a defensible TPO due to the poor condition of the specimen, which had been damaged by pollarding, the estimated remaining life span of the tree, its limited crown size and the fact that it was only visible from the street, with difficulty, between two houses. The owner of the site expressed concern regarding the damage caused by the tree to his property, the risk posed by possible structural damage caused to the tree as a result of the

pollarding that had been undertaken and the future costs of maintaining the specimen under a TPO.

In response to a question from the Committee, the site's owner confirmed that the tree roots were causing damage to the terrace of the property.

Marc Dorfman, Assistant Director, Planning, Regeneration and Economy, suggested that, in light of the evidence presented by the objectors, one of whom was an arboricultural professional, a temporary TPO be applied while the issues raised were looked into in greater detail, and the matter brought back to the next meeting of the Committee. The Committee agreed to pursue this course of action; it was further agreed that photographs of the tree would be included in the report when it was next considered, and the site would also be visited as part of the site visit for the next meeting.

RESOLVED

That this matter be deferred to the next scheduled meeting of the Planning Sub Committee.

PC247. LAND AT LAWRENCE ROAD, N15 4EX

The Committee agreed to a request to vary the order of the published agenda in order to take item 13 next.

The Committee considered a report, previously circulated, which set out the application in relation to land at Lawrence Road, N15 4EX, including the site plan, images, site and surroundings, planning history, proposal, relevant planning policy, consultation and responses, analysis of the application, human rights and equalities considerations. The report recommended that the application be granted, subject to conditions, a section 106 legal agreement and the direction of the Mayor of London. Mr Dorfman gave a presentation outlining key aspects of the report, which included an alternative design for the building on the corner of West Green Road and Lawrence Road, proposed by the applicants in response to criticisms of the original design. An addendum was also tabled at the meeting, setting out a number of revisions or corrections to the report, and additional consultation responses received.

The Committee examined the drawings and plans associated with the application.

Two local residents addressed the Committee in objection to the application, and raised the following issues in their presentations and responses to questions from the Committee:

- It was felt that the draft officer report should have been made publicly available in advance of the meeting.
- Residents would have fewer concerns were this an existing residential area, but a significant concern was the loss of employment use.
- Referring to the planning framework documents, development in this location should be mixed-use, whereas this scheme was primarily residential in nature and did not reflect the type of scheme that residents

had understood would be delivered.

- It was not felt that employment or training possibilities for the site had been explored, and there had been no incentive from the Council to look at alternatives to residential use.
- The site had the potential to contribute to the regeneration of Tottenham, as a prime site for employment or training.
- Concern was raised regarding the increase in the number of local residents this scheme would entail, particularly with regard to the provision of local school places, as local schools were already oversubscribed. It was noted that the proposed s106 contribution for education was just £837k.
- It was suggested that the site could be used for small and medium-sized businesses in industries such as fashion or IT, and that there was the potential to link the two shopping areas on West Green Road and Philip Lane.
- It was reported that the existing buildings were currently unoccupied, but objectors felt that they had been allowed to become run-down deliberately.

Cllr Strickland, Cabinet Member for Economic Regeneration and Social Inclusion, Cllr Watson, local Ward Councillor and Cllr Bevan, Cabinet Member for Housing addressed the Committee with regards to the application, and responded to questions. Cllr Bevan noted that he was speaking in his capacity as design champion, rather than Cabinet Member for Housing.

- It was recognised that this site had been a problem for a long time, and was consistently raised as a concern by local residents and businesses, as its current condition had attracted anti-social and criminal activity.
- Employment uses were being developed across Tottenham as part of the wider regeneration programme, and this development would contribute to the improvement of West Green Road. The scheme would deliver investment and construction jobs.
- It was welcomed that the applicant had confirmed that they would not accept betting shops or payday loan providers as tenants.
- As a Ward Councillor, Cllr Watson advised that he received more complaints regarding Lawrence Road than other area. The empty buildings had been used illegally and had a negative effect on local residents and businesses.
- It was felt that the applicant had engaged positively with the local community and had adapted the scheme in response to points raised. The inclusion of a café and community space, and the increase in the play space within the scheme were welcomed.
- It was not felt that the scheme detracted from the nearby conservation area.
- It was reported that the whole of the south end of Lawrence Road, of which this scheme formed only a part, was identified for mixed-use development. Additional uses could be explored as part of other developments in the area.
- Some concern was expressed regarding the proposed s106 amounts, particularly in respect of education, and clarification was sought as to why the amount offered was less than the contribution sought by the Council on the basis of the proposal.

- The Design Panel had been split with regard to the proposal, particularly in respect of the design and height of the building on the corner of Lawrence Road and West Green Road. The Committee was asked to give consideration to this issue as part of its decision.
- In response to a question regarding the predominantly residential nature
 of the proposal and why no action had been taken to encourage
 employment at the site, Cllr Strickland advised that priority was being
 given to increase employment at other sites within Tottenham as part of
 the regeneration work, as it had been demonstrated that there was no
 demand for employment use at this location.
- Cllr Bevan confirmed that he was happy with the design of the rest of the scheme, it was only the corner building that he had concerns about; he felt that it was for the Committee to form a view on the merits of the two alternative designs put forward for this element.
- Concern was expressed that, because there was already a high level of affordable housing in the area, this seemed to give developers a green light to offer very little affordable housing in order to create a greater housing mix. It was felt that this was concerning, given the level of housing need in the borough.
- Cllr Strickland acknowledged that there had been a number of developments in Tottenham with a low proportion of affordable housing, but advised that the local authority was trying to bring forward schemes in a very challenging market, and this was having an impact on viability. It was felt that a provision of 21% affordable housing was positive, given market conditions.
- It was noted that there was a high level of affordable and social housing in the area, and that the Council's policy was to encourage mixed communities. The Committee noted the distinction between social and affordable housing.
- The Committee asked whether viability was influenced by the price at which land had been purchased, and in which case, whether a scheme could be made viable by selling off the land at a lower price. It was not felt, however, that the Council should be encouraging developers to sell land at a loss.

Two local residents addressed the Committee in support of the application and responded to questions from the Committee:

- This scheme would encourage regeneration in the area, and it was hoped would reduce crime as at the moment Lawrence Road could be frightening.
- The owner of a neighbouring business at Zenith House advised that, while he originally objected to the scheme on design grounds, he felt that there was a need to deliver regeneration at this location and so was supporting the application. He felt, however, that the proposed building at the north west edge of the site was too close to his business, and requested that, were the scheme approved, this building should be relocated so that future residents of the block would not have cause to complain about disturbance from the commercial premises.
- The Committee suggested that a condition could be imposed requiring adequate sound-proofing for the new building in order to avoid any disturbance to future residents from the neighbouring commercial

property.

The applicants addressed the Committee in support of the application, and responded to questions:

- This scheme would deliver high quality housing in the area, in accordance with the planning brief for the site.
- Two public exhibitions had been held, and the applicants had also met with Members to discuss the scheme; 70% of respondents had been in favour of the proposal, with only 7% against it.
- The applicants were committed to delivering the redevelopment of the site and were ready to start work as soon as possible; the affordable housing would be delivered up front.
- With regards to issues raised on the loss of employment use, the adopted brief stated that the proposals should be housing-led, and the decisions around the use of the site had been based on discussions with officers, market advice and the adopted brief.
- The applicants had submitted a viability assessment, based on the residual land value, but following an assessment by the DVS, who had taken a different position, an alternative offer had been negotiated, to include 21% affordable housing to be delivered up front, and s106 contributions totalling £1.5m.
- With regards to the concerns raised regarding the design of the corner building, particularly with regard to the continuation of the frontage, the applicants had listened to the concerns raised, and proposed an alternative, amended design for the Committee's consideration.
- In response to a question regarding the issues raised about the proximity of part of the scheme to the commercial premises at Zenith House, the applicants advised that they felt comfortable that the scheme offered an appropriate balance between employment use and residents, and would be happy to take on board any comments or conditions in respect of sound proofing.
- In response to a question from the Committee, the applicant confirmed that they did not have a specific company policy on buy to let properties; it was reported, however, that the market no longer supported significant buy to let investment, and that projections had been based on the basis of sales to individual home owners.
- The applicants confirmed that they had no intention of coming back to the Committee to seek permission for an increase in the height of the development, and confirmed that the scheme was deliverable as applied for.
- The Committee asked why the applicants were confident they could sell this number of units at market value, given the challenges other developments in the area had faced, for example at Hale Village. It was confirmed that this was always a commercial risk, but that the applicants felt they had priced the units appropriately and the area benefited from good transport links. It was felt that the development itself would enhance the character of the area and have a wider regeneration impact. It was noted that at the two public consultation exercises, people had enquired about the availability of units in the development, and this had been taken as an encouraging sign.
- In response to a question regarding the pricing of units for shared

- ownership, it was confirmed that this would be set by the housing associations that purchased the units.
- The Committee asked about the mix of units proposed and whether the viability of the scheme was based on the price at which the land was purchased. The applicants advised that the mix of units had been negotiated with officers, and that the viability was assessed on the basis of market value; it was reported that a compromise had been sought, based on the assessment provided by the DVS, and that this had already stretched the project in terms of viability.

Marc Dorfman summed up the points that had been covered as follows:

- With regard to the concerns that this was not a mixed-use scheme, it
 was confirmed that this site formed only a part of the southern part of
 Lawrence Road, which was covered by the planning brief requiring
 mixed use development.
- While there were some operational employment sites within Lawrence Road, the rest of the site had been vacant for many years and had been identified in the 2006 UDP as being suitable for a residential led mixed use scheme. There was further opportunity for new employment space, as well as the preservation of the existing employment space, elsewhere on Lawrence Road, but this particular development would signal the start of the redevelopment of the area, bringing in more investment and bringing forward further schemes.
- Negotiations had been held with the applicants and the DVS, as a result
 of which the applicant had agreed to the improved s106 offer as set out
 in the addendum report.
- S106 contributions were pooled across developments, along with other funding, in order to deliver community infrastructure; plans were in place for the expansion of existing schools and the potential delivery of new schools in the borough over the next couple of years.
- It was reported that officers supported the proposed additional condition on sound proofing.
- In light of the concerns raised regarding buy to let, officers could look at the possibility of wording a condition or informative to address this.
- Cllr McNamara had made some comments which had been tabled; in response to these comments, Mr Dorfman advised that conditions around local jobs were part of the s106, that there would be an opportunity for Members to inspect materials prior to work commencing, that an additional condition requiring a management plan could be added, that there was an existing condition proposed to deal with waste and recycling, and that an additional condition around landscaping issues could be added, particularly in the event that the second design for the corner building, which would involve more landscaping, was preferred by the Committee. It was further noted that the applicants had already submitted a detailed plan with regard to landscaping.
- The Committee requested an additional condition that the management company should provide information for residents around waste and recycling issues, in order to avoid future problems.
- The Committee unanimously expressed a preference for the alternative design of the corner unit, as presented at the meeting, although it was

- suggested that there should be some scope for revisiting the issue of the commercial floorspace, if this was felt to be affecting the ability to attract retailers to lease the premises.
- In response to a question from the Committee regarding whether increasing the level of affordable housing might avoid the risk of large numbers of flats being sold as buy to let, Mr Dorfman advised that such a recommendation may jeopardise the planning consent, were it to be granted, as the applicants would not agree to sign the s106 agreement under such terms.
- The Committee asked whether it might be possible to condition that leases for the units should include an owner-occupier covenant. Serinther Atkar, Legal Adviser, advised that, as a non-planning consideration, such a condition would be in breach of the planning circular around appropriate planning conditions, and would be unenforceable.
- As a means of addressing the concerns raised regarding buy to let sales, Mr Dorfman suggested that the Committee allow officers to discuss a means of addressing the Committee's concerns with the applicants, with a resulting condition or informative then agreed with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee.

The Chair moved the recommendations of the report, on the basis of the alternative design of the building on the corner of West Green Road and Lawrence Road, with additional conditions around sound-proofing of the building at the north-west corner of the site, a management plan for facilities management, landscaping issues and a condition or informative, to be formulated by officers in discussion with the applicants around how to avoid large numbers of buy to let sales in the development, this to be agreed with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee. On a vote, it was:

RESOLVED

That permission be granted for application HGY/2012/1983, subject to:

- Conditions set out below, plus additional conditions around soundproofing of the building at the north-west corner of the site, a management plan for facilities management, landscaping issues and a condition or informative, to be formulated by officers in discussion with the applicants around how to avoid large numbers of buy to let sales in the development, this to be agreed with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Committee.
- A legal agreement under s106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (as amended)
- The direction of the Mayor of London; and
- In accordance with the approved plans and documents in the tables below:

DOCUMENTS

Design and Access Statement by bptw Partnership

Planning Statement by Savills

Transport Statement by Transport Planning Practice

Sustainability / Energy Statement prepared by Abbey Consultants

Air Quality Assessment by Ardent		
Flood Risk Assessment by Ardent		
Daylight and Sunlight Assessment by Savills		
Statement of Community Involvement and Equality Statement by Green		
Issues Communiqué		
Ground Investigation Assessment by Groves		
Arboricultural Method Statement by ACD Ecology		
Arboricultural Impact Assessment by ACD Ecology		
Tree Report by ACD Ecology		
Ecological Assessment by ACD Ecology		
Landscape Design Strategy prepared by ACD Ecology		
Landscape Management and Maintenance Plan by ACD Ecology		
Supplementary Report: Lawrence Road Design Proposals by Savills		
Design Commentary by bptw Partnership		

Plan Number	Plan Title
100	Location Plan – Existing
151	Site Plan
160	Contextual elevations – proposed
161	Contextual elevations – proposed
200	Courtyard house – floor plans
201	3B5P Terraced house – floor plans
202	4B7P Terraced house – floor plans
203	3B5P wheelchair house – floor plans
220	A – Terraced House – Courtyard Elevations
221	F – Terraced house – elevations
300	Block B – floor plans
301	Block B – floor plans
320	Block B – elevations
400 rev C	Block C – floor plans
420	Block C – elevations
500	Block D & E - floor plans
501	Block D & E – floor plans
520	Block D & E – elevations
521	Block D & E – elevations
600	Bay Study 01 – Block C_West Green Rd
601	Bay Study 02 – Block C&B_Lawrence Rd
602	Bay Study 03 – Block E_Lawrence Rd
603	Bay Study 04 – Block A_Mews Houses
604	Bay Study 05 – Block B_Walkway Access
605	Bay Study 06 – Block F_Terraced Houses

<u>Implementation</u>

1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the permission shall be of no effect.

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions.

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance with the approved details and in the interests of amenity.

Materials

3. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no development of the relevant part shall be commenced until precise details of the materials, to be used in connection with the development hereby permitted, including samples of all materials to be used for the external surfaces, have been submitted to, approved in writing by and implemented in accordance with the requirements of the Local Planning **Authority**.

Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area

Thresholds and Boundary Treatment

4. That the levels of all thresholds and details of boundary treatment be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority

Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area and to ensure adequate means of enclosure for the proposed development.

Waste storage and recycling

5. The scheme for refuse, waste storage and recycling be implemented in accordance with the approved plans and permanently retained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.

Logistics

67. The applicant/developer is required to submit a Construction Management Plan (CMP) and Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) for the local authority's approval prior to construction work commencing on site. The Plans should provide details on how construction work (including demolition) would be undertaken in a manner that disruption to traffic and pedestrians on Lawrence Road, West Green Road and Philip Lane is minimised. It is also requested that construction vehicle movements should be carefully planned and co-ordinated to avoid the AM and PM peak periods.

Reason: To reduce congestion and mitigate any obstruction to the flow of traffic on the transportation and highways network.

7. The applicant/operator is required to submit a Service and Delivery Plan (SDP) for the local authority's approval prior to occupancy of the non-

residential elements of the proposed development. The Plans should provide details on how servicing and deliveries will take place. It is also requested that servicing and deliveries should be carefully planned and co-ordinated to avoid the AM and PM peak periods.

Reason: To reduce traffic and congestion on the transportation and highways network.

Control of Construction Dust:

8. No works shall be carried out on the site until a detailed report, including Risk Assessment, detailing management of demolition and construction dust has been submitted and approved by the LPA. This shall be with reference to the London Code of Construction Practice. In addition either the site or the Demolition Company must be registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme. Proof of registration must be sent to the LPA prior to any works being carried out on the site.

Reason: In order to ensure that the effects of the construction upon air quality is minimised.

Contaminated land:

- 9. Before development commences other than for investigative work:
 - a) A desktop study shall be carried out which shall include the identification of previous uses, potential contaminants that might be expected, given those uses, and other relevant information. Using this information, a diagrammatical representation (Conceptual Model) for the site of all potential contaminant sources, pathways and receptors shall be produced. The desktop study and Conceptual Model shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. If the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate no risk of harm, development shall not commence until approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 - b) If the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a site investigation shall be designed for the site using information obtained from the desktop study and Conceptual Model. This shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to that investigation being carried out on site. The investigation must be comprehensive enough to enable:-
 - a risk assessment to be undertaken.
 - refinement of the Conceptual Model, and
 - the development of a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements.

The risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model shall be submitted, along with the site investigation report, to the Local Planning Authority.

c) If the risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements,

using the information obtained from the site investigation, and also detailing any post remedial monitoring shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to that remediation being carried out on site.

Where remediation of contamination on the site is required completion of the remediation detailed in the method statement shall be carried out and a report that provides verification that the required works have been carried out, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is occupied.

Reason: To ensure the development can be implemented and occupied with adequate regard for environmental and public safety.

Piling Method Statement

10. No impact piling shall take place until a piling method statement (detailing the type of piling to be undertaken and the methodology by which such piling will be carried out, including measures to prevent and minimise the potential for damage to subsurface water infrastructure, and the programme for the works) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority in consultation with Thames Water. Any piling must be undertaken in accordance with the terms of the approved piling method statement. The applicant is advised to contact Thames Water Developer Services on 0845 850 2777 to discuss the details of the piling method statement.

Reason: The proposed works will be in close proximity to underground water utility infrastructure. Piling has the potential to impact on local underground water utility infrastructure.

Water Supply Infrastructure

11. No development shall be commenced until a Water Supply Impact Study, including full details of anticipated water flow rates, and detailed site plans have been submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority (in consultation with Thames Water).

Reason: To ensure that the water supply infrastructure has sufficient capacity to cope with the additional demand in accordance with policy ENV3 of the London Borough of Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006.

Trees

12. No tree works other than those specified in the submitted Tree Report October 2012 and Landscape Specification October 2012 prepared by ACD shall be carried out and no excavation shall be cut under the crown spread of the trees without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to safeguard the trees in the interest of visual amenity of the area in accordance with Policy OS17 of the Unitary Development Plan 2006.

13. The tree protection measures recommended in the submitted Arboricultural

Method Statement October 2012 prepared by ACD must be carried out in full. A pre-commencement site meeting must be arranged and attended by all interested parties, (Site manager, Consultant Arboriculturist, Council Arboriculturist and Contractors) to confirm all the protection measures to be installed for trees.

Reason: In order to safeguard the trees in the interest of visual amenity of the area in accordance with Policy OS17 of the Unitary Development Plan 2006.

Flood Risk Assessment

14. Development shall not begin until a detailed surface water drainage scheme for the site, based on the approved Flood Risk Assessment (FRA) Lawrence Road FRA (N260-001A) has been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The scheme shall subsequently be implemented in accordance with the approved details before the development is completed. The scheme shall include a restriction in run-off and surface water storage on site as outlined in the FRA.

Reason: To prevent the increased risk of flooding, to improve and protect water quality, and improve habitat and amenity.

Heat Network

- 15. The development shall have a communal onsite heat network, and connect to an area wide decentralised energy network if an offer of connection is forthcoming between the date of this approval and three months after the start of construction. Prior to commencement of the development full details of the decentralised energy solution should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details should include:
 - How the proposed building design(s) realise(s) opportunities to include design and technology energy efficiency measures;
 - Plan of the development showing the energy centre, connection to the decentralised energy network, and the onsite communal network.
 - Details of the energy centre, and demonstration of compliance with area wide decentralised network design guidance as regards temperature and pressure design parameters for the flow and return pipes and heat exchangers, arrangements for connections and heat metering;
 - An outline of details for the proposed Street works Licence application; and
 - The reduction in carbon emissions achieved through these building design and technology energy efficiency and supply measures, compared with the emissions permitted under the national Building Regulations prevailing at the time the application(s), and achievement of the required Code for Sustainable Homes/BREEAM

If an offer is not forthcoming in the nominated timeframe, prior to commencement of the development, full details of the single plant room/energy centre, CHP and Boiler specifications, communal network and future proofing

measures should be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The details should include:

- how the proposed building design(s) realise(s) opportunities to include design and technology energy efficiency measures;
- Technical specifications for the energy centre, and proposed plant and buffer vessels, and its operation;
- Evidence showing that the combustion plant to be installed meets an emissions standard of 40mg/kWh. Where any installations do not meet this emissions standard it should not be operated without the fitting of suitable NOx abatement equipment or technology as determined by a specialist to ensure comparable emissions. Following installation emissions certificates will need to be provided
- Full details of the location and appearance of the flues, including height, design, location and sitting;
- Plan showing the energy centre and pipe route for the communal network for the development;
- An outline of details for the proposed Street works Licence application;
- An assessment of the opportunity for the energy centre to connect and supply hot water to other regeneration sites in the area:
- Details of the design of building services to future proof to connect to an area wide DE network in the future;
- Details of other future proofing measures to enable connection to an area wide DE network, such as provision in the building fabric, external buried pipework routes from the plant room to Lawrence Road, and space allocation for a heat exchanger; and
- The reduction in carbon emissions achieved through these building design and technology energy efficiency and supply measures, compared with the emissions permitted under the national Building Regulations prevailing at the time the application(s), and achievement of the required Code for Sustainable Homes/BREEAM

The energy centre and onsite network shall be installed and maintained as approved.

Reason: To maintain the opportunity for the development to connect to a district heating scheme and contributes to a reduction in overall carbon dioxide emissions in line with G1, UD1, and UD2, of the London Borough of Haringey Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 2006 and London Plan Policy 5.6.

Shopfront Design

16. Detailed plans of the design and external appearance of the shopfronts, including details of the fascias, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before any shopfront is installed.

Reason: In the interest of visual amenity of the area.

Hours of Construction

17. No demolition, construction or building works shall be carried out except between the hours of 0800 and 1800 hours (Monday to Friday) and 0800 and 1200 hours (Saturday) and not at all on Sundays or bank holidays unless written approval from the Local Planning Authority has been obtained prior to works taking place.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties in accordance with the Environmental Impact Assessment and policy ENV6 of the London Borough of Haringey Unitary Development Plan 2006

Accessibility

18. In order to ensure that the shops are accessible to people with disabilities and people pushing double buggies, the door must have a minimum width of 900mm, and a maximum threshold of 25mm.

Reason: In order to ensure that the shop unit is accessible to all those people who can be expected to use it in accordance with Policy RIM 2.1 'Access For All' of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan.

Secured by Design

19. The development hereby authorised shall comply with BS 8220 (1986) Part 1, 'Security Of Residential Buildings' and comply with the aims and objectives of the Police requirement of 'Secured By Design' and 'Designing Out Crime' principles.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves the required crime prevention elements as detailed by Circular 5/94 'Planning Out Crime'.

Satellite Aerials

20. Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 4 (1) and Part 25 of Schedule 2 of the General Permitted Development Order 1995, no satellite antenna shall be erected or installed on any building hereby approved. The proposed development shall have a central dish / aeriel system for receiving all broadcasts for the residential units created: details of such a scheme shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the property, and the approved scheme shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter.

Reason: In order to prevent the proliferation of satellite dishes on the development.

Lifetime Homes

21. That all the residential units with the proposed development with the exception of these referred to directly in the Design and Access Statement as not being able to be compliant shall be designed to Lifetime Homes Standard.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development meets the Councils Standards in relation to the provision of Lifetime Homes.

22. That at least 22 flats within the proposed development shall be wheelchair accessible or easily adaptable for wheelchair use.

Reason: To ensure that the proposed development meets the Council's Standards for the provision of wheelchair accessible dwellings.

Cycle Parking

23. That the proposed development shall provide service covered storage for 378 cycle spaces.

Reason: In order to promote a sustainable mode of travel and improve conditions for cyclists at this location.

Parking

24. A minimum of 12 disabled car parking spaces shall be provided on site.

Reason: In order to ensure well designed and adequate parking for disabled and mobility impaired in accordance with policies UD3, M3 and M5 of the London Borough of Haringey Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 2006.

25. The applicant/developer is required to submit a Parking Management Plan for the local authority's approval prior to occupation of the proposed development. The plans should provide details on how spaces are to be allocated between uses and purposes, such as maintenance, the monitoring of EVCP use to assess whether there is a growing demand and establish when passive spaces need to be brought into use.

Reason: In order to ensure that parking is allocated and management adequately to minimise parking impacts.

Commercial Opening Hours

26. That the commercial uses shall not be operational before 0700 or after 0100 hours on any day.

Reason: In order to protect the amenity of adjoining residential occupiers.

Electric Vehicle Charging Point

27. 20% of all residential parking spaces hereby authorised shall be fitted with electric vehicle charging points (EVCP's), with a further 20% having passive provision.

Reason: To encourage the uptake of electric vehicles in accordance with London Plan Policy 6.13.

INFORMATIVES

- A Prior to demolition of existing buildings, an asbestos survey should be carried out to identify the location and type of asbestos containing materials. Any asbestos containing materials must be removed and disposed of in accordance with the correct procedure prior to any demolition or construction works carried out.
- B The new development will require naming/numbering. The applicant should contact the Transportation Group at least six weeks before the development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address
- C In accordance with Section 34 of the Environmental Protection Act and the Duty of, Care, any waste generated from construction/excavation on site is to be stored in a safe and secure manner in order to prevent its escape or its handling by unauthorised persons. Waste must be removed by a registered carrier and disposed of at an appropriate waste management licensed facility following the waste transfer or consignment note system, whichever is appropriates.

REASONS FOR APPROVAL

The reasons for the grant of planning permission are as follows:

- a) It is considered that the principle of this development is supported by National, Regional and Local Planning policies which seek to promote regeneration through housing, employment and urban improvement to support local economic growth.
- b) The scheme is considered to be of a high-quality design in respect of the local area and the surrounding conservation area. It would be a well designed replacement for the existing buildings and will enhance the public realm and community safety.
- c) The Planning Application has been assessed against and on balance is considered to comply with the:
 - o National Planning Policy Framework;
 - o London Plan Policies 3.3 'Increasing housing supply', 3.4 'Optimising housing potential', 3.5 'Quality and design of housing developments', 3.6 'Children and young people's play and informal recreation facilities', 3.8 'Housing choice', 3.9 'Mixed and balanced communities', 3.12 'Negotiating affordable housing on individual private residential and mixed use schemes', 4.7 'Retail and town centre development', 4.8 'Supporting a successful and diverse retail sector', 4.9 'Small shops', 4.12 'Improving opportunities for all', 5.2 'Minimising carbon dioxide emissions', 5.3 'Sustainable design and Construction, 5.7 'Renewable energy', 5.10 'Urban greening', 5.14

'Water quality and wastewater infrastructure', 5.15 'Water use and supplies', 5.21 'Contaminated land', 6.3 'Assessing effects of development on transport capacity', 6.5 'Funding Crossrail and other strategically important transport infrastructure', 6.9 'Cycling', 6.10 'Walking', 6.12 'Road network capacity', 6.13 'Parking', 6.14 'Freight', 7.1 'Building London's neighbourhoods and communities', 7.2 'An inclusive environment', 7.3 'Designing out crime, 7.4 'Local character', 7.5 'Public realm', 7.6 'Architecture', Policy 7.8 'Heritage assets and Archaeology', 7.9 'Heritage-led regeneration', 7.15 'Reducing noise and enhancing soundscapes'; and

London Borough of Haringey Unitary Development Plan (UDP) 2006 Policies G2 'Development and Urban Design', G3'Housing Supply', UD2 'Sustainable Design and Construction', UD3 'General Principles', UD4 'Quality Design', UD6 'Mixed Use Developments', UD9 'Locations for Tall Buildings', HSG1 'New Housing Developments', HSG4 'Affordable Housing', HSG7 'Housing for Special Needs', AC3 'Tottenham High Road Regeneration Corridor', M2 'Public Transport Network', M3 'New Development Location and Accessibility', M5 'Protection, Improvements and Creation of Pedestrian and Cycle Routes', M9 'Car- Free Residential Developments', M10 'Parking for Development', CSV1 Development in Conservation Areas', CSV2 'Listed Buildings', CSV3 Locally Listed Buildings and Designated Sites of Industrial Heritage Interest', CSV7 'Demolition in Conservation Areas', EMP3 'Defined Employment Areas - Employment Locations', EMP5 'Promoting Employment Uses', ENV1 'Flood Protection: Protection of the Floodplain and Urban Washlands', ENV2 'Surface Water Runoff', ENV4 'Enhancing and Protecting the Water Environment' ENV5 'Works Affecting Watercourses', ENV6 'Noise Pollution', ENV7 'Water and Light Pollution'. ENV11 'Contaminated Land' and ENV13 'Sustainable Waste Management'.

Please note that the conditions referred to in the minutes are those as originally proposed in the officer's report to the Sub-Committee; any amended wording, additional conditions, deletions or informatives agreed by the Sub-Committee and recorded in the minuted resolution, will, in accordance with the Sub-Committee's decision, be incorporated into the Planning Permission as subsequently issued.

PC248. PEMBROKE WORKS, CAMPSBOURNE ROAD, N8 7PE

The Committee considered a report, previously circulated, on the application for planning permission at Pembroke Works, Campsbourne Road. The report set out details of the site and surroundings, images, the planning history, description of the proposal, relevant planning policy, consultation and responses, analysis of the application, sustainability, human rights and equalities issues and planning obligations, and recommended that the application be granted, subject to conditions and a section 106 legal agreement. Marc Dorfman gave a presentation outlining key aspects of the report, and advised that a meeting could be arranged with Members in order to consider the proposed materials to be used, prior to final approval of materials.

The Committee examined the drawings and plans.

The Committee discussed the application, and raised the following points:

- The Committee noted the proposed level of affordable housing, and it was felt that this contradicted the stated policy of encouraging higher levels of affordable housing in the West of the borough. Mr Dorfman acknowledged that the level was relatively low, but advised that the Council was ensuring that affordable rents were set at no more than 32% of market rents.
- Mr Dorfman confirmed that the section 106 agreement would include £23k for local employment and training skills.
- The Committee expressed concern that the development would represent a change from skilled to unskilled work, in response to which Mr Dorfman advised that the scheme would deliver training and employment support for young people across a range of skill sets.
- In response to a question from the Committee regarding the overall level of affordable housing in general, and when this would increase, Mr Dorfman reported that the current level of affordable units reflected that applications were being brought forward at a time when levels of subsidy were very low, and it was positive that affordable housing could be delivered in this environment, even at the low levels noted.

The Chair moved the recommendations of the report and it was:

RESOLVED

- 1) That planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application no. HGY/2012/1190, subject to a precondition that the owners of the application site shall first have entered into an Agreement or Agreements with the Council under Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (As Amended) and Section 16 of the Greater London Council (General Powers) Act 1974 in order to secure:
 - 1.1) 26% in units and 32% of affordable habitable rooms comprising of 7 shared ownership units of 5 x 1 bedrooms and 2 x 2 bedrooms, and 4 x 4 bed affordable rent units (to be let to tenants nominated by the Council at an 'affordable rent' equivalent to no more than 32% of the market rent).
 - 1.2) A contribution of £232,000 towards educational facilities within the Borough according to the formula set out in Policy UD10 and Supplementary Planning Guidance 10c of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan July 2006.
 - 1.3) The applicants need to enter into a s.38 Highways Act agreement with the council as Local Highway Authority contribution of £60,000 is being sought in order to dedicate a strip of land between 1.95 and 2.24 metres in width from the proposed site entrance to the junction with Pembroke Road to widen the carriageways on Campsbourne Road and provide inset parking bays.

- 1.4) A contribution of £23,000 towards local employment and training skills.
- 1.5) Plus a monitoring fee which equates to £1,500.
- 1.6) The s106 to secure one 'car club' space on site with the provision of one year's free membership to an associated car club scheme for residents of the new development. The s106 to also secure free 'car club' membership for 42 units for one year, which equates to £2,100.
- 1.7) The s106 to secure affordable commercial space no more than 50% of market rates in perpetuity.
- 1.8) A residential travel plan must be secured by the s106 agreement, as part of the detailed travel plan, the following measures must be included in order to maximise the use of public transport:
 - a) The developer must appoint a travel plan co-ordinator, working in collaboration with the Facility management Team to monitor the travel plan initiatives annualy.
 - b) Provision of welcome induction packs containing public transport and cycling / walking information like available bus / rail / tube services, map and timetables to all new residents.
 - c) Establish or operate a car club scheme, which includes at least 2 cars spaces. The developer must offer free first year membership to all new residents.
 - d) Adequate residential cycle provision, in line with the 2011 London Plan for the residential development.
- 2) That following completion of the Agreement referred to in resolution (1) above, planning permission be granted in accordance with planning application no. HGY/2012/1190 and Applicant's drawing No's 0100, PL_0102, PL_0300, PL_1001B, PL_1002 PL_1005 incl.; PL_2000 and PL_3000 PL_3006 incl.

Subject to the following condition(s):

EXPIRATION OF PERMISSION

1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the permission shall be of no effect.

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance

with the approved details and in the interests of amenity.

PRE-COMMENCMENT CONDITIONS

MATERIALS & EXTERNAL APPEARANCE

3. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no development shall be commenced until precise details and samples of the materials (including but not limited to, brick, cladding, windows and roofing materials) to be used in connection with the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area and to preserve the historic character of the building and conservation area.

BALCONY DESIGN

4. Notwithstanding the details submitted in the approved drawings, no development shall commence until full details and specifications of the balconies (which shall consist of fixed obscured glazing panels) have been submitted to and approved in writing, by the local planning authority and implemented in accordance with those details approved under this condition.

Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the proposed new building and the area generally.

PHOTOVOLTAIC EQUIPMENT

5. Prior to the commencement of the development full details and design of the photovoltaic equipment shall be submitted to and approval by the Local Planning Authority and implemented in accordance with those approved details.

Reason: To ensure the development is sustainable.

BOUNDARY TREATMENT AND LANDSCAPING

- 6. Notwithstanding the details of landscaping referred to in the application, no development shall commence until a scheme for the landscaping and treatment of the surroundings of the proposed development to include detailed drawings of:
 - a. those existing trees to be retained.
 - b. those existing trees to be removed.
 - c. those existing trees which will require thinning, pruning, pollarding or lopping as a result of this consent. All such work to be agreed with the Council's Arboriculturalist.

d. Those new trees and shrubs to be planted together with a schedule of species shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development. Such an approved scheme of planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the approved details of landscaping shall be carried out and implemented in strict accordance with the approved details in the first planting and seeding season following the occupation of the building or the completion of development (whichever is sooner). Any trees or plants, either existing or proposed, which, within a period of five years from the completion of the development die, are removed, become damaged or diseased shall be replaced in the next planting season with a similar size and species. The landscaping scheme, once implemented, is to be maintained and retained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order for the Local Authority to assess the acceptability of any landscaping scheme in relation to the site itself, thereby ensuring a satisfactory setting for the proposed development in the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

HARD LANDSCAPING

7. Notwithstanding details shown in the proposed application, no development shall commence until details of a scheme depicting those areas to be treated by means of hard landscaping have been submitted to, approved in writing by the local planning authority and implemented in accordance with the approved details. Such a scheme shall include detailed drawing(s) of those areas of the development to be so treated, a schedule of proposed materials and samples and details of those areas which are permeable surfaces, to be submitted for written approval on request from the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the development has satisfactory landscaped areas in the interests of the visual amenity of the area.

WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT, STORAGE & COLLECTION

8. That a detailed scheme for the provision of refuse and waste storage within the site shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the works. Such a scheme as approved shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter to the satisfaction of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to protect the amenities of the locality.

CONSTRUCTION MANAGEMENT PLAN

9. Prior to the commencement of the development, a Construction Management Plan (CMP) and Construction Logistics Plan (CLP) shall be submitted to and approved by the local authority's. The plans shall contain details of how construction work (inc. demolitions) are to be undertaken to minimise disruption to traffic and pedestrians on Hornsey High Street, Campsbourne Road and the road surrounding and vehicle movements planned and co-ordinated to avoid the AM and PM peak periods.

Reason: To reduce congestion and mitigate any obstruction to the flow of traffic on the transportation

CONTAMINATED LAND

- 10. Before development commences other than for investigative work:
 - a) A desktop study shall be carried out which shall include the identification of previous uses, potential contaminants that might be expected, given those uses, and other relevant information. Using this information, a diagrammatical representation (Conceptual Model) for the site of all potential contaminant sources, pathways and receptors shall be produced. The desktop study and Conceptual Model shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. If the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate no risk of harm, development shall not commence until approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.
 - b) If the desktop study and Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a site investigation shall be designed for the site using information obtained from the desktop study and Conceptual Model. This shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to that investigation being carried out on site. The investigation must be comprehensive enough to enable:-
 - Risk assessment to be undertaken, refinement of the Conceptual Model, and the development of a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements.

The risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model shall be submitted, along with the site investigation report, to the Local Planning Authority.

c) If the risk assessment and refined Conceptual Model indicate any risk of harm, a Method Statement detailing the remediation requirements, using the information obtained from the site investigation, and also detailing any post remedial monitoring shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by, the Local Planning Authority prior to that remediation being carried out on site.

Where remediation of contamination on the site is required completion of the remediation detailed in the method statement shall be carried out and a report that provides verification that the required works have been carried out, shall be submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority before the development is occupied.

CONTROL OF CONSTRUCTION DUST

11. Prior to commencement of the development, a detailed report, including Risk Assessment, detailing management of demolition and construction dust has been submitted and approved by the LPA. This shall be with reference to the London Code of Construction Practice. In addition either the site or the Demolition Company must be registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme. Proof of registration must be sent to the LPA prior to

any works being carried out on the site.

Reason: To protect the amenities of nearby properties.

EXTERNAL LIGHTING

12. Notwithstanding the details contained within the development hereby approved, full details of the artificial lighting scheme to the entrance, vehicular routes and parking areas, pedestrian routes and designated communal amenity space shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the development.

Reason: to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development.

CONSIDERATE CONSTRUCTOR SCHEME

13. The site or contractor company must be registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme. Proof of registration must be sent to the Local Planning Authority prior to any works being carried out on the site.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties.

BREEAM - DESIGN STAGE ASSESSMENT

14. The development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum standard of "Very Good" under the Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) 2008 Scheme. Notwithstanding the BREEAM pre-assessment referred to in the submitted Sustainability Statement (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-011A), a BREEAM design stage assessment will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of construction. The BREEAM design stage assessment will be carried out by a licensed assessor.

Reason: To ensure that development takes place in an environmentally sensitive way.

POST-COMMENCMENT CONDITIONS

BREEAM CERTIFICATE

15. The development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum standard of "Very Good" under the Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) 2008 Scheme. Within three months of the occupation of the completed development, a copy of the Post Construction Completion Certificate for the relevant building verifying that the "Very Good" BREEAM rating has been achieved shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The Certificate shall be completed by a licensed assessor.

Reason: To ensure that development takes place in an environmentally sensitive way.

USE CLASS ORDER RESTRICTION

16. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 the premises shall be used as Class B1 only and shall not be used for any other purpose including any purpose within Class A1 unless approval is obtained to a variation of this condition through the submission of a planning

CYCLE PARKING

17. Notwithstanding the existing 42 sheltered secure cycle parking spaces currently provided for the proposed site, the applicant will be required to provide a total of 59 sheltered secure cycle parking spaces in line with the standard required by the 2011 London Plan which requires the applicant to provide 2 spaces for 3 and 4 bed units. Such a scheme shall include a detailed drawing of the allocated sheltered secure cycle parking spaces to be submitted for written approval on request from the Local Planning Authority, prior to the occupation of the development.

Reason: to provide enhance cycling facilities in order to promote travel by sustainable modes of transport to and from the site.

SECURED BY DESIGN

18. The development hereby authorised shall comply with BS 8220 (1986) Part 1, 'Security of Residential Buildings' and comply with the aims and objectives of the police requirement of 'Secured by Design' and 'Designing out Crime' principles.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposed development achieves the required crime prevention elements as detailed by Circular 5/94 'Planning Out Crime'.

SATELLITE AERIALS

19. Prior to the occupation of the development, details of a scheme for a central satellite dish/aerials shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the property, and the approved scheme shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter.

Reason: In order to prevent the proliferation of satellite dishes on the development.

SIGNAGE

20. Any signage required for the proposed commercial unit shall be subject to a separate advertising consent application. Signage shall not be erected on the building without the prior consent of the local planning authority.

Reason: In order to ensure a high quality design finish and external appearance of the development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area including the conservation area.

CONSTRUCTION HOURS

21. The construction works of the development hereby granted shall not be carried out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 or after 1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties.

INFORMATIVE:

The development requires naming / numbering. Please contact Local Land Charges (tel. 0208 489 5573) at least weeks 8 weeks before completion of the development to arrange allocation of suitable addresses.

INFORMATIVE:

The Council will wish to see that in respect of both external finish and internal standards of finish, the affordable housing and the private housing elements shall be completed to the same standards; and that this requirement shall be contained within the Section 106 Agreement.

INFORMATIVE:

Thames Water will aim to provide customers with a minimum pressure of 10m head (approx 1 bar) and a flow rate of 9 litres/minute at the point where it leaves Thames Waters pipes. The developer should take account of this minimum pressure in the design of the proposed development.

REASONS FOR APPROVAL

The proposed redevelopment of this site with a mixed use scheme comprising of residential and commercial use would unlock the full potential of the site, providing a better frontage onto Campsbourne Road.

The scale, bulk and massing of the proposed development will not be significantly greater to that of the adjoining building. The proposed development will not give rise to a loss of privacy or result in a significant degree of overlooking of the rear elevations/ rear gardens of the properties fronting High Street. The density of the proposed development is considered appropriate for a built up site located in close proximity to good transport links and a town centre.

The proposed development is considered to be in accordance with Policies within Haringey's Unitary Development Plan (2006)'. UD3 'General Principles', UD4 'Quality Design', EMP1 'Defined Employment Area – Regeneration Area', HSG 9 'Density Standards', M10 'Parking for Development'; OS17 'Tree Protection, Tree Masses and Spines' and Supplementary Planning Guidance 'SPG 1A 'Design Guidance and Design Statements' and SPG 3b 'Privacy / Overlooking, Aspect / Outlook and Daylight / Sunlight'.

Please note that the conditions referred to in the minutes are those as originally proposed in the officer's report to the Sub-Committee; any amended wording,

additional conditions, deletions or informatives agreed by the Sub-Committee and recorded in the minuted resolution, will, in accordance with the Sub-Committee's decision, be incorporated into the Planning Permission as subsequently issued.

PC249. FORRESTER HOUSE 52 BOUNDS GREEN ROAD N11 2EU

The Committee considered a report, previously circulated, on the application for planning permission at Forrester House, 52 Bounds Green Road, N11 2EU. The report set out details of the site and surroundings, images, planning history, relevant planning policy, consultation and responses, analysis of the application, planning obligations, human rights and equalities considerations and recommended that permission be granted, subject to conditions and subject to a section 106 legal agreement. The Planning Officer gave a presentation highlighting the key aspects of the report. The Committee examined the plans and drawings.

- The Committee asked about how fire risk would be managed, particularly as, unlike regular hotels, there would be provisions for cooking within each unit; it was reported that this was dealt with under building regulations.
- In response to a question regarding whether it was possible to address waste control issues by means of design; it was agreed that an additional condition could be applied, requesting further details of the waste storage arrangements.
- The Committee asked about the proposed condition that no unit is to be occupied by any individual for longer than 90 days, and how such a condition would be monitored and enforced. It was reported that this condition was intended to prevent any future change of use to convert the premises into an HMO, and was enforceable in law. It was suggested that the condition could be reworded to require the applicant to confirm to the Council in writing on an annual basis that no individual had been permitted to stay for longer than 90 days, so that, were such confirmation not received by the authority, this would act as a trigger for monitoring of compliance. It was further suggested that the condition should give the local authority the right to inspect the hotel register, on demand.
- It was confirmed that this application was for a different use-class than an HMO were there any subsequent desite to convert to an HMO, this would require further planning permission. It was reported that serviced apartments were common in Europe, but less common in the UK.
- The legal advisor confirmed that each room was a separate planning unit in its own right, making future conversion to an HMO complex.

A local resident address the Committee in obejction to the application on the grounds that the bulk and height of the proposal would lead to obstruction and significant loss of light to his property, particularly in the morning, from around 7-11am.

The applicant addressed the Committee and raised the following issues:

While the main concern of the objector was loss of light, the daylight

study undertaken had shown a loss of no more than 1% light in any of the rooms tested. This report had been submitted to planning officers as part of the application.

- The target was for lets of 2 3 weeks, as serviced apartments. It was felt that this was a strong location for such a use, due to the transport links.
- It was confirmed that there would be a 24-hour reception, concierge service and cleaning staff on-site, but there would be no facilities such as a restaurant or bar. Customers would have the option of purchasing breakfast packages as part of their stay, which would provide them with the groceries required for them to prepare breakfast in their own rooms.
- The applicants confirmed that they would have no objection to a condition requiring them to provide written confirmation on an annual basis that no stays exceeded 90 days, and permitting the local authority to inspect the hotel register on demand.

The Chair moved the recommendations of the report with the amendment of condition 13 to require the applicant to provide written confirmation on an annual basis to the local authority that no individual had been permitted to stay for longer than 90 days, and that the local authority could inspect the hotel register on demand, and an additional condition seeking further details of the waste storage and collection arrangements. On a vote, it was:

RESOLVED

That application HGY/2012/1373 be granted planning permission, subject to the conditions below, with the amendment of condition 13 to require the applicant to provide written confirmation on an annual basis to the local authority that no individual had been permitted to stay for longer than 90 days, and that the local authority could inspect the hotel register on demand, and an additional condition seeking further details of the waste storage and collection arrangements, and subject to a section 106 legal agreement.

Subject to the following conditions:

EXPIRATION OF PERMISSION

1. The development hereby authorised must be begun not later than the expiration of 3 years from the date of this permission, failing which the permission shall be of no effect.

Reason: This condition is imposed by virtue of the provisions of the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 and to prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions.

IN ACCORDANCE WITH APPROVED PLANS

2. The development hereby authorised shall be carried out in complete accordance with the plans and specifications submitted to, and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: In order to ensure the development is carried out in accordance

with the approved details and in the interests of amenity.

PRE - COMMENCEMENT CONDITIONS

MATERIALS & EXTERNAL APPEARANCE

3. Notwithstanding the description of the materials in the application, no development shall be commenced until precise details and samples of the materials (including but not limited to, brick, cladding, windows and roofing materials) to be used in connection with the development hereby permitted have been submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. Furthermore, full details of the window treatment and internal features to be retained shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In order to retain control over the external appearance of the development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area and to preserve the historic character of the building and conservation area.

BOUNDARY TREATMENT AND LANDSCAPING

4. Notwithstanding the details contained within the plans hereby approved, full details of boundary treatments including fencing and gates, to the entire site and landscaping including soft and hard landscaping and trees to be retained and removed, shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of the development.

Reason: In order to safeguard the visual amenity of the area and to ensure adequate means of enclosure for the proposed development.

TREE PROTECTION

5. The existing trees on the site shall not be lopped, felled or otherwise affected in any way (including raising and lowering soil levels under the crown spread of the trees) and no excavation shall be cut under the crown spread of the trees without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority. Before any works herein permitted are commenced, all those trees shall be protected by secure, stout, exclusion fencing erected at a minimum distance equivalent to the branch spread of the trees and in accordance with BS 5837:2005 and to a suitable height. Any works connected with the approved scheme within the branch spread of the trees shall be by hand only. No storage of materials, supplies or plant machinery shall be stored, parked, or allowed access beneath the branch spread of the trees or within the exclusion fencing.

Reason: In order to ensure the safety and well being of the trees on the site during constructional works that are to remain after building works are completed.

EXTERNAL LIGHTING

6. Notwithstanding the details contained within the development hereby approved, full details of the artificial lighting scheme to the entrance,

vehicular routes and parking areas, pedestrian routes and designated communal amenity space shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the development.

Reason: to ensure the satisfactory appearance of the development.

CONSIDERATE CONSTRUCTOR SCHEME

7. The site or contractor company must be registered with the Considerate Constructors Scheme. Proof of registration must be sent to the Local Planning Authority prior to any works being carried out on the site.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties.

BREEAM - DESIGN STAGE ASSESSMENT

8. The development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum standard of "Very Good" under the Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) 2008 Scheme. Notwithstanding the BREEAM pre-assessment referred to in the submitted Sustainability Statement (Document Ref: REP-PL-HOR-011A), a BREEAM design stage assessment will be submitted to the Local Planning Authority prior to the commencement of construction. The BREEAM design stage assessment will be carried out by a licensed assessor.

Reason: To ensure that development takes place in an environmentally sensitive way.

POST-COMMENCMENT CONDITIONS

BREEAM CERTIFICATE

9. The development hereby permitted shall be built to a minimum standard of "Very Good" under the Building Research Establishment Environmental Assessment Method (BREEAM) 2008 Scheme. Within three months of the occupation of the completed development, a copy of the Post Construction Completion Certificate for the relevant building verifying that the "Very Good" BREEAM rating has been achieved shall be submitted to the Local Planning Authority. The Certificate shall be completed by a licensed assessor.

Reason: To ensure that development takes place in an environmentally sensitive way.

ELECTRIC VEHICLE CHARGING POINTS

10. The applicant must ensure that 20 per cent of all parking spaces must be equipped with electrical charging points and reserved for the use for electric vehicles, with an additional 20 per cent passive provision for electric vehicles in the future and full details submitted to the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the use.

Reason: In order for the development to comply with the London Plan 2011 and to reduce emissions.

TRAVEL PLAN

11. The designated Site Travel Plan Co-ordinator shall implement the measures as detailed in the Travel Plan submitted as part of the application.

Reason: To minimise the traffic impact of this development on the adjoining highway network and promote sustainable travel to and from the site.

USE CLASSES

12. Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town & Country Planning (Use Classes) Order 1987 the premises shall be used as an Apartment-Hotel only and shall not be used for any other purpose including any purpose within Class C1 unless formal approval is sought from the Local Planning Authority by way of a full planning application.

Reason: In order to restrict the use of the premises to one compatible with the surrounding area because other uses within the same Use Class or another Use Class are not necessarily considered to be acceptable.

SHORT TERM TENANCY

13. The C1 Apartment Hotel use hereby approved shall be managed in a way to ensure that each individual room/unit is occupied by any individual customer(s)/tenant(s) for a period of not more than 90 days (maximum. 90-day Assured Shorthold Tenancy contracts hereby approved).

Reason: To ensure the property is not used as long term residential accommodation.

WASTE AND RECYCLING MANAGEMENT, STORAGE & COLLECTION

14. Notwithstanding the details provided on the plans full details of the waste and recycling management, storage and collection provisions for the proposed site shall be submitted to and approved by the local planning authority prior to the commencement of the use.

Reason: In order to ensure satisfactory waste and recycling arrangements.

SATELLITE AERIALS

15. Prior to the occupation of the development, details of a scheme for a central satellite dish/aerials shall be submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority prior to the occupation of the property, and the approved scheme shall be implemented and permanently retained thereafter.

Reason: In order to prevent the proliferation of satellite dishes on the development.

SIGNAGE

16. Any signage required for the proposed commercial unit shall be subject to a separate advertising consent application. Signage shall not be erected on the building without the prior consent of the local planning authority.

Reason: In order to ensure a high quality design finish and external appearance of the development in the interest of the visual amenity of the area including the conservation area.

CONSTRUCTION HOURS

17. The construction works shall not be carried out before 0800 or after 1800 hours Monday to Friday or before 0800 or after 1200 hours on Saturday and not at all on Sundays or Bank Holidays, unless alternative arrangements are agreed in writing by the local planning authority.

Reason: In order to ensure that the proposal does not prejudice the enjoyment of neighbouring occupiers of their properties.

INFORMATIVE: NAMING AND NUMBERING

The new development may require numbering. The applicant should contact the Local Land Charges at least six weeks before the development is occupied (tel. 020 8489 5573) to arrange for the allocation of a suitable address.

REASON FOR APPROVAL:

The principle use is acceptable in principle and is supported by the intent of National, Regional and Local planning policy. The proposed development would preserve the character of building, street scene and locality. There would be no adverse impact on the amenity of neighbouring owner/occupiers as a result of the proposal. The resulting development would be of a high standard of design. The development is acceptable in terms of impact on traffic and parking and waste management and sustainability. The application is in accordance with policies UD2 'Sustainable Design and Construction', UD3 'General Principles', UD4 'Quality Design', UD7 'Waste Storage', EMP4 'Non-Employment Generating Uses', M3 'New Development Location and Accessibility', M10 'Parking Development', and CLT4 'Hotels Boarding Houses and Guest Houses' of the Haringey Unitary Development Plan (2006) and SPG1a 'Design Guidance', SPG8a 'Waste and Recycling', SPG4 – Access for All – Mobility Standards and SPD 'Housing' of the Haringey Supplementary Planning Guidance and Documents and SP8, SP11 and SP15 of the Draft Local Plan (Formerly Core Strategy) and Proposals Map.

Please note that the conditions referred to in the minutes are those as originally proposed in the officer's report to the Sub-Committee; any amended wording, additional conditions, deletions or informatives agreed by the Sub-Committee and recorded in the minuted resolution, will, in accordance with the Sub-Committee's decision, be incorporated into the Planning Permission as subsequently issued.

PC250.	LAND REAR OF 27-47 CECILE PARK, N8
	This item was deferred to the next meeting of the Planning Sub Committee.
PC251.	LAND REAR OF 27-47 CECILE PARK, N8
	This item was deferred to the next meeting of the Planning Sub Committee.
PC252.	63 LANCHESTER ROAD
	This item was deferred to the next meeting of the Planning Sub Committee.
PC253.	NEW ITEMS OF URGENT BUSINESS
	There were no new items of urgent business.
PC254.	DATE OF NEXT MEETING
	Monday, 14 January 2012, 7pm.
	The meeting closed at 22:15hrs.

COUNCILLOR SHEILA PEACOCK

Vice-Chair